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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Welcome to the

          3  Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting

          4  and Maritime Uses. I am the Chair, Jessica Lappin.

          5  We're joined today by Council Member Jimmy Oddo,

          6  Council Member Leroy Comrie, Council Member Maria

          7  del Carmen Arroyo, Council Member Gale Brewer,

          8  Council Member John Liu, and Council Member

          9  Martinez, Miguel Martinez.

         10                 There are two items that are on the

         11  agenda today. We're going to start with the item

         12  that's in Council Member Brewer's district and

         13  hopefully go through this quickly, since there are a

         14  lot of people that are going to testify today on

         15  City and Suburban, it's the application for West

         16  60th Street. Oh, no. It's a New York Cab Company

         17  Stable, excuse me. 20075168.  As I mentioned, it's

         18  in Council Member Brewer's district. If Ronda Wist

         19  from the Landmarks Preservation Commission can come

         20  and testify for us, please? And Ms. Wist will be

         21  followed by Kat Taylor from the Manhattan Borough

         22  President Scott Stringer's office.

         23                 MS. WIST: Thank you. Good morning,

         24  Chair Lappin, and good morning, Council members. My

         25  name is Ronda Wist, Executive Director of the
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          2  Landmarks Preservation Commission. I am here today

          3  to testify on the Commission's designation of the

          4  New York Cab Company Stable as a New York City

          5  landmark.

          6                 On October 17th, 2006, the Landmarks

          7  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          8  designation of the New York Cab Company Stable.

          9  Twenty-two people spoke in favor, including Council

         10  Members Gale Brewer and Tony Avella, representatives

         11  of New York State Senator Tom Duane and the

         12  Manhattan Borough President Scott Stringer, as well

         13  as representatives of Community Board 7 in

         14  Manhattan, Historic Districts Council, Landmark

         15  West, Landmarks Conservancy and the Municipal Arts

         16  Society.

         17                 In addition, the Commission received

         18  numerous letters in support of designation. There

         19  were no speakers in opposition. November 14th, 2006,

         20  the Commission voted to designate the New York Cab

         21  Company Stable a New York City landmark.

         22                 The New York Cab Company Stable is

         23  one of the most impressive surviving livery stables

         24  in New York City. A handsome example of a commercial

         25  building executed in the Romanesque Revival style,
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          2  this structure is well preserved with a prominent

          3  bracketed cornice, handsome decorative brickwork and

          4  three monumental round arched entrances along the

          5  north side of West 75th Street. The opening of the

          6  Ninth Avenue el in 1879 brought many new residents

          7  to the Upper West Side and Tenth Avenue, renamed

          8  Amsterdam Avenue in 1890, so that the street became

          9  the neighborhood's chief service corridor, with a

         10  significant of number of private and livery stable

         11  concentrated there.

         12                 The New York Cab Company Limited was

         13  organized in 1876 and began its operations in 1886.

         14  An ambitious and innovative firm, the company

         15  adopted or introduced practices that are common in

         16  today's taxicab industry. The charged customers a

         17  fixed rate of 50 cents or less per hour, at a time

         18  when local carriage drivers worked independently. To

         19  distinguish their cabs from rival firms, the New

         20  York Cab Company began to paint their vehicles

         21  yellow. The New York Cab Company also experimented

         22  in a "small way" with timed fares, anticipating the

         23  present-day taxi meter.

         24                 Built in 1888 to '90 to the design of

         25  Charles Abbot French, the building was owned by
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          2  William T. Walton, a dry good merchant and nearby

          3  resident, who leased the building to the New York

          4  Cab Company. Established to provide "a cheap and

          5  improved transit system in New York," the New York

          6  Cab Company operated stables in as many as ten

          7  midtown locations, particularly around the

          8  entertainment district in Times Square.

          9                 The company occupied the building

         10  from its completion in 1980 until 1909. Five stories

         11  tall, it was probably the largest stable on the

         12  Upper West Side, housing hundreds of horses, cabs

         13  and related supplies. In subsequent years, the

         14  demand for horse-drawn vehicles rapidly declined,

         15  and for the rest of the twentieth century, under

         16  various names, 318-330 Amsterdam Avenue was an

         17  automobile garage, with retail stores along

         18  Amsterdam Avenue. To accommodate these uses and

         19  retail tenants, the ground story of the Amsterdam

         20  Avenue facade was altered, however, despite these

         21  changes the building is extremely well-preserved.

         22                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         23  this designation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         25  Council Member Brewer, did you want to make a
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          2  statement or ask any questions?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Just to thank

          4  the Landmarks Preservation Commission and also to

          5  thank the owner of the building who has been very

          6  supportive, and who has been a star I think in this

          7  landmark.  It certainly contrasts with the Dakota

          8  Stable debacle next door, a very unfortunate

          9  situation, not on the agenda for today but just to

         10  mention it. So, I want to thank the Commission and

         11  say that this is a very worthwhile project. I

         12  testify to that effect, and I think the entire

         13  neighborhood would agree.

         14                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Do any of my

         16  colleagues have questions for Ms. Wist?

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 Kat Taylor. And there is nobody else

         19  signed up to testify on this item; is that correct?

         20  Okay, thank you.

         21                 Please begin.

         22                 MS. TAYLOR: Good morning. Thank you.

         23  Hi. I'm Kat Taylor. I'm here to represent Borough

         24  President Scott Stringer. I want to thank the

         25  Subcommittee and the Chair for holding this hearing
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          2  today and allowing us to testify.

          3                 The New York Cab Company Stable is an

          4  impressive Romanesque Revival structure which

          5  exemplifies the history of the Upper West Side.

          6  Constructed from 1888 to 1890, the Stable features

          7  prominent arches and decorative brickwork. Built by

          8  a local resident, it was leased to the New York Cab

          9  Company to house horse-drawn carriages, but when the

         10  demand for this horse-powered transit declined, the

         11  building was adapted to house gasoline car vehicles.

         12                 The New York Cab Company was the

         13  pioneer in the taxicab industry and were even the

         14  first to use the now standard yellow color for cabs.

         15                 This building tells the story of

         16  changing times in our City. It was once used to

         17  house horse-drawn carriages, it's now used as a

         18  garage, an evolution of use that embodies the

         19  changes in transportation over the last 100 years.

         20  Still largely intact, this building is an ideal

         21  landmark and should be saved to tell the story to

         22  future generations. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         24  much. Any questions for Ms. Taylor?

         25                 Okay, seeing no one else here to
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          2  testify, this hearing is closed.

          3                 We're going to open the hearing on

          4  City and Suburban Homes. Item 20075169. It's located

          5  in my district. And I wanted to invite Ms. Wist back

          6  to testify.

          7                 MS. WIST: Thank you, again, Chair

          8  Lappin and Council members. I am still Ronda Wist,

          9  Executive Director of the Landmarks Commission, and

         10  now I'm here to testify on the Commission's

         11  designation of an amendment to the City and Suburban

         12  Homes First Avenue Estate in Manhattan.

         13                 On April 24th, 1990, the Landmarks

         14  Commission designated the City and Suburban Homes

         15  Company, First Avenue Estate, a New York City

         16  landmark. However, on August 16th, 1990, the Board

         17  of Estimate, in one of its final actions, voted to

         18  remove two buildings, 429 East 64th Street and 430

         19  East 65th Street, from the designation.

         20                 On November 14th, 2006, the Landmarks

         21  Commission held a public hearing to amend the

         22  designation of the City and Suburban Homes Company

         23  First Avenue Estate to include these two buildings

         24  that had been removed.

         25                 Thirty-two people spoke in favor of
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          2  the designation, including Council Member Lappin,

          3  representatives of State Senator Liz Krueger,

          4  Assembly Member Pete Grannis, Borough President

          5  Scott Stringer, Congresswoman Carolyn Maloney,

          6  Community Board 8, the Society for the Architecture

          7  of the City, the Historic Districts Council, the

          8  Municipal Art Society, the East 79th Street

          9  Neighborhood Association, Friends of First Avenue

         10  Estate, Friends of the Upper East Side Historic

         11  District, the New York Landmarks Conservancy, and

         12  the East 60s Neighborhood Association.

         13                 Two people testified in opposition, a

         14  representative of the owner and a representative of

         15  the Real Estate Board of New York. The Commission

         16  also received 195 postcards, a petition with 52

         17  signatures, and several letters in support of

         18  designation.

         19                 On November 21st, 2006, the Landmarks

         20  Commission voted to amend the designation of the

         21  City and Suburban Homes First Avenue Estate, to

         22  include 429 East 64th Street and 430 East 65th

         23  Street.

         24                 Built between 1898 and 1915, City and

         25  Suburban Home Company's First Avenue Estate is the
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          2  oldest extant project of the most successful of the

          3  privately funded limited dividend companies which

          4  attempted to address the housing problems of the

          5  nation's working poor at the turn of the century.

          6                 The company's investors, led by such

          7  prominent New Yorkers as Cornelius Vanderbilt, Isaac

          8  Seligman, and Darius Ogden Mills, voluntarily agreed

          9  to limit their profits in order to provide wage

         10  earners with comfortable, safe, hygienic,

         11  well-maintained housing at market prices. 429 East

         12  64th Street and 430 East 65th Street were the last

         13  buildings constructed for the project in 1915 to '15

         14  and designed by City and Suburban's architectural

         15  department headed by Philip H. Ohm.

         16                 The two light-court buildings have

         17  entrance courtyards and feature decorative details

         18  inspired by the earlier buildings, which had been

         19  designed by James Ware. In addition to their

         20  similarities in plan, these buildings are related to

         21  the others on the block in size, scale, use of

         22  materials and decorative detailing, thus giving the

         23  block a strong sense of visual homogeneity. While

         24  there were other projects that covered large

         25  portions of city blocks, notably Alfred T. White's
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          2  Riverside Buildings in 1890 in Brooklyn, nothing

          3  approached City and Suburban's large-scale

          4  high-density developments. The First Avenue Estate

          5  is one of only two full city block developments of

          6  light-court tenements in the country from this

          7  period. Thus, the First Avenue project can be seen

          8  as an important achievement in the social housing

          9  movement, bracketed in time between White's

         10  English-inspired low-density developments at

         11  Riverside and such post-World War I projects as the

         12  Coops.

         13                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         14  this designation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         16  much. I just wanted to reiterate that I am very much

         17  in support of this designation for the reasons that

         18  you stated and for the reasons outlined in the

         19  designation report. This was the first full block

         20  light-court tenement, and I believe that this is a

         21  very important designation in terms of the history

         22  of the affordable housing movement in this country,

         23  not just in our City.

         24                 And I would add, as you mentioned

         25  that the other elected officials from the East Side
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          2  testified in favor of this at the hearing.

          3                 I wanted to give my colleagues an

          4  opportunity to ask any questions. Okay.

          5                 And I think it's rare that we have an

          6  opportunity in government to do something like this,

          7  to right what I think was a wrong, to really fix

          8  what I think was a mistake in government, and as you

          9  mentioned when the Board of Estimate removed these

         10  two buildings that front York Avenue in the middle

         11  of the night as one of their last acts, and it was a

         12  bad deal, done for the wrong reasons, and I think

         13  this is a great opportunity to right that wrong. So

         14  thanks very much, and thanks to the Commission for

         15  designating this.

         16                 MS. WIST: Thank you. And we agree

         17  with you. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We're going to

         19  hear from Brice Peyre from Congresswoman Maloney's

         20  Office and Kat Taylor from the Borough President's

         21  Office.

         22                 You can both come up together. You

         23  can introduce yourself and begin.

         24                 MR. PEYRE: My name is Brice Peyre,

         25  the Director of Community and Intergovernmental
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          2  Affairs for Congresswoman Carolyn Maloney.

          3                 The Congresswoman is in Washington

          4  today. She would be here to deliver this testimony

          5  in person otherwise, and she sends her regrets. The

          6  following is her testimony.

          7                 Thank you for giving me the

          8  opportunity to offer testimony expressing my strong

          9  support for restoring the landmark designation to

         10  429 East 64th Street and 430 East 65th Street in

         11  Manhattan. These buildings, also known as the City

         12  and Suburban Homes First Avenue Estate, are located

         13  in the 14th Congressional District that I am

         14  privileged to represent in Congress.

         15                 The City and Suburban First Avenue

         16  Estate have important and distinctive historical and

         17  architectural significance. 429 East 64th Street and

         18  430 East 65th Street were the last buildings

         19  constructed in the First Avenue Estate development,

         20  which was built between 1898 and 1915. The City and

         21  Suburban First Avenue Estate represented one of the

         22  earliest and most successful efforts expressly aimed

         23  at providing affordable housing to working New

         24  Yorkers of limited means.

         25                 Designed by the architectural
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          2  department of the City and Suburban Homes Company,

          3  headed by Philip H. Ohm, the two buildings feature

          4  courtyard entrances and decorative details inspired

          5  by their predecessors in the complex.

          6                 In the entire United States, the

          7  First Avenue Estate is one of only two developments

          8  of light-court tenements from this era that comprise

          9  an entire city block. Representing an impressive

         10  advance spearheaded by the movement for social

         11  housing that occurred around the turn of the

         12  century, they are historically significant. They

         13  offer powerful tribute to the continuing efforts to

         14  provide affordable housing that have been so

         15  important throughout the history of our great

         16  metropolis, and so significant in our city's ability

         17  to remain a beacon of opportunity around the world.

         18                 That the City and Suburban First

         19  Avenue Estate should be landmarked has never been in

         20  doubt to many of us. Indeed, that is why the

         21  Landmarks Preservation Commission took exactly such

         22  a step by unanimous vote in April of 1990. It is

         23  only to rectify the grievous mistake made by the now

         24  defunct Board of Estimate later that year when it

         25  overrode the Commission's decision under intense
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          2  political pressure from a powerful real estate

          3  developer in one of the Board's final moves before

          4  being dissolved by a new City Charter that we are

          5  here today.

          6                 History rarely grants governmental

          7  decision-makers a chance to reverse course after

          8  making a bad decision. Typically, in the

          9  rough-and-tumble world of New York City real estate,

         10  there is never a chance for a "do-over." I urge the

         11  Landmarks Preservation Commission to seize this

         12  unusual opportunity to restore landmark designation

         13  to this historically and architecturally distinctive

         14  site. I urge the Commissioners to designate the City

         15  and Suburban First Avenue Estate once again a

         16  landmark of our great City.

         17                 Thank you, Chairwoman Lappin. Thank

         18  you, Council members.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         20                 MS. TAYLOR: Hi. I'm Kat Taylor, and

         21  I'm speaking today again on behalf of Manhattan

         22  Borough President Scott Stringer. I wanted to begin

         23  obviously by commending Chair Lappin and her staff

         24  for all of this great effort and work on this issue

         25  that brought us here today.
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          2                 The City and Suburban Estates are

          3  very important to our City. One of the most

          4  successful housing projects for the working poor in

          5  the City's history. Built between 1898 and 1915, a

          6  time of massive housing reform, the City and

          7  Suburban First Avenue Estates stands out as a model

          8  for its use of a privately financed,

          9  limited-dividend financing scheme, and for its

         10  innovative design.

         11                 As Richard Plunz noted in A History

         12  of Housing in New York City, this was the first

         13  housing project for the working poor to be built to

         14  middle-class standards. Instead of dark, cramped

         15  apartments, they had entrance halls, modern

         16  bathrooms, central hot water and steam heat, and

         17  closets among their amenities.

         18                 The history of the designation of

         19  these buildings is long, as we all know. Originally

         20  designated as a complex these two buildings were

         21  removed in the final meeting of the Board of

         22  Estimate. But to fully understand the impact of this

         23  project, it must be viewed as a whole to appreciate

         24  the design which maximized light and air.

         25                 Today this Committee has the
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          2  opportunity to write a final paragraph to the story

          3  of the First Avenue Estate, and to make sure it is a

          4  happy ending. Please designate the two buildings and

          5  make the estate whole again. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And I

          7  just wanted to pick up on something that you both

          8  mentioned, that it's a full-block tenement, and

          9  that's part of its historical significance. And that

         10  if you think back to what the housing conditions

         11  were at the time for the working poor, no running

         12  water often, no sewers, and in parts of the City

         13  there was a lot of disease, crime, as a result of

         14  some of these living conditions, this was a

         15  revolutionary idea that really changed the way

         16  housing was built in our City and in our country.

         17  So, I just wanted to thank you both, and thank the

         18  principals for testifying.

         19                 The next panel will be Elizabeth

         20  McCracken, Joy Kieras, Joy Helen Kieras and Janet

         21  Nonamaker.

         22                 MS. McCRACKEN: Good morning. It's a

         23  great honor to be here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Hold on,

         25  Elizabeth.
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          2                 MS. McCRACKEN: Thank you. It's an

          3  honor to be here before you, Ms. Lappin, and your

          4  fellow Committee members. I am Elizabeth McCracken,

          5  of The Friends of First Avenue Estate, formerly a

          6  resident at 429 64th Street for 23 years. I have

          7  been part of the effort supporting the designation

          8  of First Avenue Estate since the late 1980s.

          9                 The status of these buildings was

         10  well deserved when it was declared as a landmark in

         11  1990 by the Landmarks Commission, and again on

         12  November 22nd, 2006, when the Landmarks Preservation

         13  Commission redesignated 429 64th and 430, making the

         14  First Avenue Estate whole again, a full-block

         15  landmark, and not just 13 of the 15 buildings in the

         16  block being landmarked.

         17                 It's time for the Board of Estimate's

         18  inappropriate politically motivated action back in

         19  August of 1990 to be reversed.

         20                 We are grateful to the Landmarks

         21  Commission, and it is a pleasure to listen to the

         22  testimony by Ms. Wist, to hear some of the

         23  characteristics of the buildings. Their most recent

         24  designation included new understandings of why these

         25  two buildings were important as a part of the block.
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          2                 The owner's opposition to the

          3  redesignation was expressed in words by his

          4  representative at the November 14th, 2006 public

          5  hearing before the Landmarks Commission, and on the

          6  day before, the tangible expression of opposition

          7  began with the exercise of legal permits that had

          8  been filed two years ago, but not acted upon. Within

          9  a week the entire ornamental parapet was removed and

         10  the alterations that are permitted by the permit are

         11  ongoing.

         12                 Now, although the appearance of 429

         13  and 430 has changed, their historical and cultural

         14  significance as the two buildings that completed the

         15  First Avenue Estate has not.

         16                 The Board of Estimate and the owner

         17  have missed the point. It was a full block of model

         18  tenements and the contribution of the City and

         19  Suburban Homes Company to sound and affordable

         20  housing for working people in the City was honored

         21  in 1990 by the Commission, and in the case of 429 a

         22  second time in 2006.

         23                 The decennial federal census gives us

         24  an opportunity to view a snapshot of the country's

         25  population every ten years. We do not get to see all
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          2  the details of this wonderful resource, until many

          3  years after the census. So, the last census that we

          4  can look at for First Avenue Estate is the 1930

          5  census, and this is what it looks like. The pages

          6  are 47 in number and there are 2,300 plus people who

          7  lived in that block in 1930.

          8                 One of those persons is the woman who

          9  lived in my apartment when I was there in the

         10  seventies and eighties and nineties. She was a

         11  teacher. This is the kind of person who lived in the

         12  first estate in that census and there were many,

         13  many occupations that are represented - the

         14  policeman, the City worker, the nurse, the teacher,

         15  the doctor. It was a cross-section of what the City

         16  was made of at the time.

         17                 We have census figures for 1900,

         18  1910, 1920 and 1930. Between 1900, the first time

         19  the City and Suburban had residents in the block,

         20  they got there just in time to get into the census.

         21  In 1910 the whole block is present. In 1920 and 1930

         22  you can see -- I'm sorry. In 1910, anything but 429

         23  and 430 are present in the census records. By 1920

         24  and 1930 it's the whole block. So, we have a

         25  remarkable history of who it was who was living in
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          2  New York at the time, especially as they appear in

          3  this one block that had been built to be a block of

          4  housing for working people by the City and Suburban

          5  Homes Company. There is a testimony of the value of

          6  the vision that the City and Suburban Homes Company

          7  had.

          8                 Now, if you want to look at 1940

          9  census data, you have to wait til 1910. I'm sorry,

         10  2010. Thank you, Joy. And if you're around in 2070,

         11  you will see the names of some of the people who are

         12  here from the First Avenue Estate - the flight

         13  attendant, the pharmacist, the 90-year-old gentleman

         14  who walks up to the sixth floor in 429 East 64th

         15  will be on the list. The students, the artists, the

         16  City employee in the Parks Department. It's the same

         17  kind of people who are here. Some of our job titles

         18  have changed. There is, of course, a computer person

         19  in the buildings, who would not have been there in

         20  1900, but there would have been something

         21  comparable.

         22                 So, I urge you to approve the

         23  Landmark Preservation Commission designation of 429

         24  and 430, which restores this landmark status to the

         25  entire block. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And

          3  thank you for your long-time advocacy on this issue.

          4                 I neglected to mention before Ms.

          5  McCracken began, we're going to limit people to

          6  three minutes for testimony. The clock is over

          7  there. If I can ask the Sergeant to please set the

          8  clock for three minutes.

          9                 MS. KIERAS: Good morning. I'm Joy

         10  Kieras, a resident of First Avenue Estate, and a

         11  long-time supporter of designation of these as New

         12  York City landmarks, and a member of a group of

         13  Friends. Behind me are some of the friends who could

         14  take time from their jobs to come, and I appreciate

         15  coming. With us we have pink, electric pink notices

         16  on most of us. It's an honor to appear before you,

         17  Chairperson Lappin, and Council members at the

         18  Subcommittee. As I mentioned, I testify in support

         19  of the restoration of the landmark status to 429 and

         20  430, two buildings at the eastern boundary of First

         21  Avenue Estate.

         22                 This vote and your attention will

         23  make First Avenue Estate whole again.

         24                 Others have spoken before me from the

         25  Landmarks Commission, and you have before you the
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          2  report of the research about the City and Suburban

          3  Homes Company, this privately financed limited

          4  dividend company, which built First Avenue Estate

          5  and the sister full block development, York Avenue

          6  Estate, up the street.

          7                 Their purposes were to build housing

          8  to high standards which were then only available to

          9  the wealthy. Privacy, ways of limiting the number of

         10  apartments per floor, sunlight, light courts and

         11  courtyards, and a window in every room, for air, for

         12  cross-ventilation and lots of corner rooms.

         13                 If you look at the footprint of the

         14  building, you will see that the idea was to make a

         15  full block development from the very beginning. One

         16  of the most appealing aspects of the First Avenue

         17  Estate is its human scale, a quantity so admired by

         18  the late Lena Rosenthal of Friends of the Upper East

         19  Side Historic District. Light and air reaches the

         20  street, trees flourish and people smile in the

         21  sunshine and do not hasten to pass by. Volunteers

         22  plant spring bulbs each year and passers-by stop and

         23  look.

         24                 The two buildings you consider today

         25  differ in several significant ways from the rest of
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          2  First Avenue Estate. They realized James Wares's

          3  unrealized hope to have courtyard entrances.  By

          4  placing entryways to apartments at the four corners

          5  of covered courtyards, they were able to limit even

          6  further the number of apartments per floor, and

          7  increase privacy.

          8                 A diagram, as I mentioned, is proof

          9  of the intent to build a full block of model

         10  tenements. Each successive part is an experiment in

         11  design, in layout, and ways to improve the amenities

         12  that they sought. During the time of the

         13  interruption before these last buildings were built,

         14  City and Suburban Homes Company built York Avenue

         15  Estate, about 1,200 apartments - a prodigious

         16  project - each one of them again asking for

         17  amenities for the wealthy.

         18                 I urge you to support this landmark

         19  and to designate it, overturning the error of the

         20  Board of Estimate, and as the Landmarks law

         21  suggests, to safeguard, to protect, and to have for

         22  the rest of us the recognition of the

         23  accomplishments of the past.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MS. HELEN KIERAS: I'd like to thank
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          2  the Council members and the Chair for hearing my

          3  remarks and for considering this issue. Today is a

          4  culmination of an issue I had spent much of my life

          5  concerned with, informed about and intrigued by.

          6  When I was a few years old, navigating through

          7  childhood and beginning my education, my mother, Dr.

          8  Joy Kieras, and her partner, Ms. Elizabeth

          9  McCracken, and others, were beginning what was to

         10  become a complex, time-consuming, sometimes

         11  frustrating and historically significant job. Their

         12  goal, to obtain landmark status for the City and

         13  Suburban Homes Company at 64-65th Street First

         14  Avenue Estate.

         15                 As we are here today, it goes without

         16  saying this battle was successful - almost. While it

         17  is essential to emphasize how devastating an error

         18  the Board of Estimate made 16 years ago in removing

         19  429-430 from landmark designation, now reversed by

         20  the New York City Landmarks Commission, I would

         21  instead like to focus my remarks on the quality of

         22  life I enjoyed, flourished in, and the ruinous

         23  effect or refusal to approve the LPC's designation

         24  would have on the enclave I grew up on. Raised in

         25  414 East 65th Street on the fourth floor since my
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          2  birth, I enjoyed, and still do, tree-lined streets

          3  and congestion-free sidewalks - a circumstance

          4  becoming less of an expectation and more of an

          5  anomaly in this City.

          6                 As a young child, I was able to enjoy

          7  numerous, though not always triumphant planting

          8  projects in the tree surrounds lining 64th and 65th

          9  Streets. However, while the failure of my seed to

         10  germinate was mostly likely the result of my less

         11  than stellar, possibly nonexistent green thumb,

         12  future generations raised in the same neighborhood

         13  and with the same intention for tree-surround

         14  planting will be met with a more severe and

         15  non-negotiable reason for non-germination, no sun.

         16                 The creation of a tower, or be it the

         17  alleged 28 stores, or whatever, will destroy not

         18  just the remarkably appropriate balance of the area,

         19  but will also obliterate the purpose and utility of

         20  the entire estate. No longer will sunlight stream

         21  gloriously through each and every window of the

         22  apartments, showering residents with the inherent

         23  view and matchless efficacy that is natural light,

         24  while permitting conservation of energy for other

         25  uses.
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          2                 No longer will residents have the

          3  benefit to cross breezes, at times delighted and

          4  merely for a refreshing zephyr and at other times

          5  for a necessarily adroit air current to wafture away

          6  the lingering odors of a cooking experiment gone

          7  awry.

          8                 No longer will residents be able to

          9  stroll down a street relatively free from pedestrian

         10  traffic, or across York Avenue without having to

         11  risk life and limb to dodge the inevitable traffic

         12  jams that will accompany the destruction of 429 and

         13  430.

         14                 Parking, already a feat left to the

         15  mentally fearless and patience endowed become even

         16  more impossible. And the need for the occasional

         17  parking garage and all of its hideous splendor

         18  already dotting the area will only increase.

         19                 As a young child I was thoroughly

         20  fond of Mary Poppins, a film I watched repeatedly

         21  across the street at Rockefeller University, and her

         22  magical umbrella of flight, the prospect of it now

         23  becoming a reality is daunting at least, as wind

         24  blasts would become the post tower norm.

         25                 Where once the only shadows along the
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          2  sidewalk were trees will now be the long cast

          3  shadows of the newly erected tower of conspicuous

          4  consumption. Perhaps shadow is the wrong word, for

          5  it connotes the potential or passage of the dark and

          6  the eventual emergence of the light.

          7                 Almost done.

          8                 This shadow will be permanent,

          9  unyielding, unforgiving and never remorseful in its

         10  presence. It will cast an appropriately grayish pall

         11  over the neighborhood, which will indeed never be

         12  the same, never be better, always be worse.

         13                 The preservation of this complex as a

         14  whole contiguous landmark is crucial for the

         15  perpetuation of the quality of life enjoyed not only

         16  by a State residence, but members by members of the

         17  surrounding community who are able to prosper in the

         18  resplendent gift of shadow-free sun-filled hordless

         19  (sic) living. The importance of sunlight, air and

         20  trees will never be trumped, and the ease and

         21  availability of access to such natural resources in

         22  429, 430 and the remainder of the estate is

         23  exceptional and absolutely worth preserving.

         24                 In closing, please consider the words

         25  of Martin Luther: "For in the true nature of things,
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          2  if we rightly consider every green tree is far more

          3  glorious than if it were made of gold and silver."

          4  Thank you.

          5                 MS. NONAMAKER: Good morning. My name

          6  is Janet Nonamaker, and I am a tenant of 429 East

          7  64th and have been for 29 years. On behalf of the

          8  Friends of the First Avenue Estate, I'd like to

          9  present Jessica Lappin with this envelope, which

         10  contains 194 petition signatures, and 65 postcards

         11  addressed to the Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public

         12  Siting and Maritime Uses of the New York City

         13  Council.

         14                 Also enclosed are copies of

         15  expressions of support submitted to the Landmarks

         16  Preservation Commission on its November 14th, 2006

         17  public hearing. Included are petitions submitted by

         18  the Friends of First Avenue Estate, which is 265

         19  signatures, and postcards collected on behalf of the

         20  Friends of the Upper East Side historic districts,

         21  combined totals of these petition postcard efforts

         22  are over 450 petition signatures and over 125

         23  postcards.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. The

         25  Sergeant-At-Arms will collect that from you.
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          2                 MS. NONAMAKER: Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          4  much. And I just wanted to note that the footprint

          5  of the building, the layout, the courtyard

          6  entrances, the air and light are very significant

          7  historical and architectural features. I'm very glad

          8  that you all brought those up and mentioned them

          9  specifically today. And thank you, this panel,

         10  everyone in this room has worked very hard, but

         11  particularly Joy and Elizabeth worked a long time on

         12  this, and thank you very much.

         13                 MS. KIERAS: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The next panel is

         15  Simein Bankoff from Historic Districts Council, Lisa

         16  Kersavage from Municipal Art Society, Seri Warden

         17  from Friends of the Upper East Side.

         18                 MR. BANKOFF: Good afternoon, Council

         19  members. Simein Bankoff, Historic Districts Council.

         20  I actually didn't think I'd be able to be here

         21  today, so I had submitted written testimony to

         22  Council Member Lappin.

         23                 I just am here to again give HDC

         24  support to this very important landmark. We feel

         25  very strongly that this is a, I believe as Chair
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          2  Lappin said, a remarkable chance to do a do-over in

          3  New York City politics and New York City real estate

          4  and really correct a wrong that had been done, as

          5  other people have said quite eloquently. This is

          6  part of the original, these buildings were part of

          7  the original designation. They really reflect part

          8  of the original insignificance and the design

          9  significance of the complex as a whole, regardless

         10  of what's going on with them at the moment with

         11  their alterations. I have a splinter in my finger at

         12  the moment, it doesn't mean it's less of my hand, it

         13  just means that hopefully that splinter will come

         14  out of my finger and it will continue to be part of

         15  my hand. Just as similarly, these alterations will

         16  hopefully cease, the buildings will be restored back

         17  under the oversight of the Landmarks Commission.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MS. WORDEN: My name is Seri Worden,

         20  and I'm the Executive Director of Friends of the

         21  Upper East Side Historic Districts. And Friends

         22  would first like to express our gratitude to the

         23  Landmarks Preservation Commission for restoring the

         24  rightful designation of City and Suburban Homes

         25  Company, First Avenue Estate in its entirety.
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          2                 Second, we would like to thank

          3  Councilwoman Jessica Lappin for enthusiastically

          4  taking out this important cause. We are grateful to

          5  Ms. Lappin for her passionate interests in the

          6  protection of these important buildings and also for

          7  her extensive outreach to the community, including a

          8  Town Hall meeting which Friends took part in. We

          9  really are grateful to you, Ms. Lappin, for taking

         10  this up.

         11                 Since these buildings were removed

         12  from the original designation in 1990, Friends has

         13  attempted to keep this issue in the public spotlight

         14  through numerous newsletter articles, letters to the

         15  Commission and other advocacy efforts.

         16                 In the fall of 2004, we urged the LPC

         17  to designate these buildings via postcards campaign

         18  sent in by the hundreds. Likewise, this past

         19  November, a second postcard campaign was done,

         20  demonstrating the continued public support for the

         21  designation of these important buildings.

         22                 Despite such an outpouring of

         23  community and political support for these buildings,

         24  just before the hearing last November, the owners

         25  erected a scaffold to fulfill existing permits, to
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          2  stucco over the historic brick, alter window

          3  openings, and to demolish the decorative parapet.

          4  This was an unconscionable attempt before the

          5  reinstatement of the rightful designation of these

          6  very worthy buildings, and a tactic Friends and

          7  other preservation groups have become all too

          8  familiar with.

          9                 Owners pulling permits for

         10  inappropriate work to avoid designation is a

         11  situation that seems to be getting much worse, and

         12  it's an issue we hope that will get further studied.

         13                 I'd like to conclude with testimony

         14  by Helena Rosenthal, Friends' first President, to

         15  the Board of Estimates in 1990. She said, "In fact,

         16  compromise is unthinkable for these 15 buildings are

         17  whole as they stand today, and have a unmistakable

         18  presence in architectural style.

         19                 Furthermore, they are culturally and

         20  historically important to the City, for they are a

         21  constant reminder of the shelter that can and must

         22  be provided and at an affordable price to our fellow

         23  men and women."

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you to
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          2  Friends, as well.

          3                 The next panel is Judith Schneider

          4  from ESNA, Micah Kellner, and Jonathan Geller and

          5  Kaitilin Griffin.

          6                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Good morning, Chair

          7  Lappin and Council members. My name is Judith

          8  Schneider, and I'm the Executive Vice President of

          9  the East Sixties Neighborhood Association. ESNA is a

         10  15-year-old 48 Block Association, which includes the

         11  First Avenue Estates.

         12                 The community believes that the City

         13  of New York has a rare opportunity to right a grave

         14  wrong. It is the act of omission by the Board of

         15  Estimate in not landmarking the two buildings on

         16  York Avenue, which are part of the 15 buildings

         17  comprising City and Suburban First Avenue Estates.

         18  It is clear that adherence to the spirit of

         19  landmarking was not in play at the time. If the

         20  Landmarks Preservation Commission judged City and

         21  Suburban at 79th Street, and the 13 buildings of the

         22  First Avenue Estates worthy of being landmarked at

         23  the time, then why not the two York Avenue

         24  buildings?

         25                 If these two buildings are not
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          2  preserved, a tall tower will be constructed in their

          3  place that in time will block the light-court that

          4  distinguishes Philip Ohm's design. In this City of

          5  tall buildings, this is the one place where a tall

          6  tower is totally inappropriate. These 15 buildings

          7  are communities within our neighborhood and deserve

          8  to be preserved. Thank you.

          9                 MR. KELLNER: Hi, Chairwoman. My name

         10  is Micah Kellner, and I'm a State Committeeman, the

         11  Democratic State Committeeman for the 60 for the

         12  Assembly District, which includes the First Avenue

         13  Estates.

         14                 Everyone who has gone before me has

         15  really made the case, and I'm not going to

         16  reiterate, but I believe that everything everyone

         17  else has said is completely true. I just again

         18  wanted to make the point that this is, again, a

         19  chance to undo something that was so wrong. Although

         20  it's taken 16 and a half years, I think this is sort

         21  of a great moment because of who the Chairwoman is

         22  and the fight that she has led on this, and also

         23  because of this Council body, which has acted in

         24  complete opposite as to the way the Board of

         25  Estimate used to work was, the Board of Estimate did
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          2  things in secret, behind closed doors. This body has

          3  been open and deliberative, and I believe if it

          4  continues to act in the fashion that it has

          5  previous, that this will end very well for this

          6  community.

          7                 Although, this is one small bad act

          8  that can be undone by the Board of Estimate, it is

          9  huge for everyone sitting behind me. So, please look

         10  at this carefully and act appropriately. Thank you.

         11                 MS. GRIFFIN: I dedicate my testimony

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Could you please

         14  identify yourself for the record?

         15                 MS. GRIFFIN: I will. I dedicate my

         16  testimony to Gale Harris, who wrote the 1990

         17  Landmark Report, for the entire Estate, and to

         18  Jessica Lappin, Council member, without whose

         19  concerted effort we would not be here today.

         20                 My name is Kaitilin Griffin. For most

         21  of my life I've been a beneficiary of the

         22  innovations and tenement design that were realized

         23  by the First Avenue Estate. I lived in 429 East 64th

         24  Street for more than 20 years. Prior to that I was

         25  born and raised in Siconi Hall, which is the
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          2  neighboring complex at York and 65th, 66th, built in

          3  1925, ten years after the final installment of First

          4  Avenue Estate, and visibly based on the same model

          5  as the First Estate. For ten years I played -- for

          6  at least ten years I played in the courtyard that

          7  was its own little world.

          8                 So, I'm here to besiege you to speak

          9  in favor of returning to landmark designation 429

         10  and 430. We, as members of this rapidly changing

         11  community, believe that the First Avenue Estate

         12  needs to be protected in its entirety as a

         13  socio-historic monument, in the history of urban

         14  housing, the history of urban housing for the

         15  working poor. To remove these two buildings from the

         16  whole estate from this envelope would be like

         17  removing the bookend to this story.

         18                 A feeling of a monument comes from

         19  seeing the unity of form and in this case function.

         20  Gail Harris writes in her designation report:  "In

         21  1914, City and Suburban's architectural department

         22  headed by Philip Ohm completed the block with

         23  light-court buildings that are consistent with

         24  Ware's buildings on the block. In addition to their

         25  similarities and plan, these buildings were related
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          2  to the other in block, on the block, in size scale,

          3  use of materials and decorative detailing..." which

          4  alas is partially being removed as being discussed

          5  by virtue of the so-called permits... "thus giving

          6  the block a strong sense of visual homogeneity."

          7                 So, it is important to retain the

          8  integrity of this full block design. To interrupt

          9  this by removing the two buildings would be to

         10  overshadow all of the others. Consider this: good

         11  design has coherence and effectively humane purpose.

         12  The First Avenue Estate embodies both of these

         13  qualities, coherence in that the entire design

         14  cleaves to the principle of bringing light, air,

         15  circulation into each individual apartment, a

         16  unifying principle. Human purpose, in that by

         17  introducing light and air to human dwellings where

         18  there was little before, you effectively improve

         19  quality of life for the inhabitants they're in and

         20  consequently relieve the City of the burden of

         21  problems induced by inhumane living conditions.

         22                 As you are aware, the First Avenue

         23  Estate is one of two remaining examples in the

         24  entire country. This design drew its inspiration in

         25  part from ideas that came from 19th Century Europe,
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          2  ideas that were in direct response to the burgeoning

          3  problems of hygiene, overcrowding, inhumane dwelling

          4  conditions, that quite literally plagued our City,

          5  as well as others right up to the earlier part of

          6  the 20th Century. The early inhabitants of the First

          7  Avenue Estate, Bohemians, later Germans and Irish

          8  were beneficiaries of ideas that loosely derived

          9  from the countries that they left.

         10                 I'm almost finished.

         11                 It is worth emphasizing that the

         12  entirety of the First Avenue Estate was accomplished

         13  by private investors. They were well advised to seek

         14  a solution to the problems of urban dwelling for the

         15  poor, immigrants, notably those who flocked to

         16  Yorkville, largely German, Bohemian and Irish.

         17                 These private investors compromised

         18  an aggressive profit motive by not developing every

         19  square foot of real property.  Why? For the sake of

         20  introducing light and air to each apartment.

         21                 Nowadays it would seem we look to

         22  government for housing improvements for the working

         23  class. This is well and good, but the First Avenue

         24  Estate is testimony to what can happen when private

         25  developers are enlightened by a sense of social
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          2  responsibility to people --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm sorry, I have

          4  to ask you to wrap up.

          5                 MS. GRIFFIN: -- And to the City.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          8                 MR. GELLER: Chairwoman Lappin,

          9  members of the Council, the situation of First

         10  Avenue Estate, in its whole, is a monument and a

         11  symbol of intelligent capitalism, in which some of

         12  the richest capitalists in the country at a limited

         13  profit provided reasonable accommodations to the

         14  working classes. This project of intelligent

         15  capitalism was the first of this nature in United

         16  States and possible in the world (sic).

         17                 The qualities (sic) were recognized

         18  in 1990 by the LPC, the City and Suburban First

         19  Avenue Estate, consisting of 15 buildings, was

         20  designated as a landmark. In surreptitious move

         21  (sic), more than four months later, after a 5-R

         22  hearing, attended only by two out of a dozen

         23  commissioners, at 3:00 in the morning, in a, to

         24  quote Council Member Lappin, "back-room deal," and

         25  by what my old teacher would call "by hook and by
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          2  crook," by a body that was discontinued few days

          3  after, two of the York Avenue corner buildings were

          4  exempted from the landmark designation.

          5                 1992, the New York Supreme Court

          6  found that, and I'm quoting from Landmarks of New

          7  York, which reported it, "single elements of the

          8  designated complex could be considered in isolation

          9  from the whole, was found to be inherently

         10  inconsistent with the designation."

         11                 On November 21, 2006, the LPC revoke

         12  the surreptitious exemptions that were done in 1990

         13  and they return the two buildings into its landmark

         14  designation. We ask to honor it, and the members to

         15  do the same.

         16                 In addition, very recently the

         17  landlord began to exercise a permit obtained of the

         18  basis of the surreptitious dealing. We ask that this

         19  permit be reexamined, since it was obtained in

         20  addition to the above, stating that the building

         21  were asbestos-free. This was denied by the LPC after

         22  asbestos were released on the tenants (sic), and

         23  under the above permit.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very
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          2  much. Thank you.

          3                 The last panel is Paul Selver,

          4  representing the Stahl York Avenue Company, and

          5  Chris -- well, Chris Santangelo, who are both here

          6  to testify in opposition. Maybe Mr. Santangelo would

          7  like to speak first and then the owner can speak

          8  after that.

          9                 MR. SANTANGELO: Good morning. I've

         10  been living at 64th and First Avenue for nine years

         11  with my wife. My name is Chris Santangelo, born and

         12  raised in New York City. My occupation is an actor.

         13  There are many reasons why I live in this area. It's

         14  safe, it's clean, it's centrally located, but most

         15  importantly, the housing is affordable and it's just

         16  such a wonderful area.

         17                 My wife and I have never had any

         18  problems with the way the buildings are run. The

         19  staff cleans buildings regularly, sweeps the

         20  sidewalks, keeps everything clean, it's safe. Never

         21  had a problem with roaches, rodents, anything like

         22  that, they're diligent in keeping the cleanliness of

         23  the building. The buildings are not easy to

         24  maintain.

         25                 So, I had to put my emotions aside
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          2  and being a New Yorker, I understand. And I tried to

          3  look at what is the opportunity here. I really feel

          4  that the opportunity here is to bridge an old New

          5  York and a new New York, and the buildings are 100

          6  years old. So, in looking to the future, we want to

          7  keep affordable housing in the area, while upgrading

          8  the standard of living, the buildings that I live

          9  in. Being a couple, I want to raise a family, and I

         10  want to have kids, and it's very difficult to do

         11  that. And if something is built on York Avenue, and

         12  the money can be used to upgrade the buildings that

         13  we live in, I think it really would benefit everyone

         14  to upkeep the buildings, to put new windows, to put

         15  elevators in for the elderly who it's very difficult

         16  to walk up six flights of stairs, I think it would

         17  just revitalize and increase and raise the standard

         18  of living. Buildings have gone up across the street

         19  from us, and it has not changed my quality of

         20  living. It has not gotten in my way. Yes,

         21  construction, I understand that, but in the longrun

         22  I think it really benefits because the money can be

         23  used to make the rest of the buildings a lot nicer

         24  and a lot better quality. That's my perspective of

         25  living there for the past nine years, and I love the
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          2  area, and I really feel that the owners want to see

          3  the best for the people who live there.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And I just wanted

          6  to note, we've been joined by Council Member Mendez.

          7                 MR. SELVER: Madam Chair, members of

          8  the Subcommittee, good afternoon. My name is Paul

          9  Selver. I am a member of the firm of Kramer Levin

         10  Naftalis & Frankel. I am here on behalf of Stahl

         11  York Avenue Company, the owner of the York Avenue

         12  Properties being considered for designation.

         13                 I would like to start this afternoon

         14  by stating for the record our client's proposal for

         15  these properties, if they are not designated. This

         16  proposal is to do the following:

         17                 - to redevelop the York Avenue

         18  frontage with a new building designed by a world

         19  class architect.

         20                 - to preserve 200 apartments on the

         21  balance of the block, in the buildings that were

         22  designated landmarks in 1990, at rents that are

         23  affordable to middle-income families.

         24                 - to invest over $15 million in the

         25  modernization and restoration of these buildings,
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          2  and to ensure that everyone living in the York

          3  Avenue Properties, when they are redeveloped, will

          4  be relocated on the block, in comparable apartments

          5  and at comparable rents.

          6                 This opportunity will be lost if the

          7  York Avenue Properties are designated. And this loss

          8  would be unfortunate because the City would gain

          9  nothing in return.

         10                 The consequences of designation are

         11  clear:

         12                 - designation would freeze the

         13  physical conditions of buildings that are not

         14  special. They are neither exceptional nor stand out.

         15  The record is undisputed that the combination of the

         16  buildings on this block is neither the first to be

         17  completed, the largest, the best, the most

         18  architecturally interesting, or the most important

         19  City and Suburban project.

         20                 - designation would also foreclose

         21  the opportunity to develop a building that could be

         22  a landmark in the future. As a simple example,

         23  imagine New York City without the Empire State

         24  Building. It could have happened if there had been a

         25  Landmarks Preservation Commission in 1928 and it had

                                                            47

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  designated, as it almost certainly would have, the

          3  prior improvement on the site, the architecturally

          4  and culturally important Waldorf Astoria Hotel.

          5                 - in addition, designation would

          6  conflict with the prior decision of the Board of

          7  Estimate, notwithstanding that the Council's

          8  decision would be based on an identical set of

          9  facts, and that the Board of Estimate's decision was

         10  upheld by the Supreme Court and has never been

         11  overturned.

         12                 Most importantly, though, is that the

         13  designation would be the wrong way to memorialize

         14  City and Suburban. City and Suburban recognized that

         15  "its model tenants..." and I quote,"... which were

         16  modeled when they're built, will not forever be

         17  model." And it believed it had, and I quote again,

         18  "... a special duty to rid ourselves of obsolete

         19  tenements that do not meet current standards of

         20  living."

         21                 City and Suburban is best remembered

         22  by allowing the private sector to redevelop this

         23  property, modernize and restore the model tenements

         24  on the balance of the block, and to ensure in these

         25  newly renovated buildings that there will continue
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          2  to be affordable housing on the Upper East Side.

          3                 The City Council has a choice and an

          4  opportunity here. We respectfully submit that the

          5  right choice is for the Council to use its statutory

          6  authority to disapprove the designation. Disapproval

          7  will reinforce the importance of maintaining high

          8  standards when designating landmarks. It will

          9  acknowledge the importance of principle consistency

         10  and administrative decision-making and it will

         11  reaffirm the Council's commitment to preserving and

         12  promoting mixed income communities in New York City.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I take issue with

         15  a number of the things you mention in your

         16  testimony. So, let's go through them one-by-one.

         17  First of all, these properties have been designated.

         18  They've been designated twice. So, the Council's

         19  rule is to uphold the designation, but I want to

         20  make clear that these buildings had been designated

         21  by the Landmarks Preservation Commission twice.

         22                 And second, I completely disagree

         23  with the concept that the City would gain nothing in

         24  return from preserving what is important historical

         25  development in, not just our City, but in our
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          2  nation's affordable movement. So, I think, you know,

          3  to say that preserving historically significant

          4  buildings in the City gives us nothing in return, I

          5  mean, I just philosophically don't agree with that

          6  statement. We preserve buildings because it's

          7  important to maintain part of our path, and I think

          8  that we all, as citizens of this City, gain

          9  something from that, and the City as a whole gain

         10  something from that.

         11                 MS. SELVER: May I just respond to

         12  that, Madam Chair?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sure.

         14                 MR. SELVER: There is a full block, it

         15  is considered to be -- it is the oldest, first to be

         16  completed, it is the largest, it's considered to be

         17  the best of the City and Suburban complexes that is

         18  today designated. So, the question really arises

         19  here, as a matter of law, as a matter of law in the

         20  Landmarks statute, the use of the word "special,"

         21  which by dictionary definition means singular or

         22  exceptional. Is this block, as a block, does it

         23  qualify under that statute. And the second point, as

         24  a matter of policy, because you are freezing

         25  something, and because you are having a significant
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          2  impact on the rights of the property owners, is it

          3  an appropriate way to construe the landmark statute.

          4                 And I think we respectfully feel that

          5  these are not special within the framework of that

          6  kind.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I understand. And

          8  I imagine you'll be litigating this. But I also

          9  wanted to correct for the record, or make sure my

         10  colleagues know, you mentioned the Supreme Court,

         11  there was a court case that was initiated by

         12  residents after the Board of Estimate removed these

         13  two buildings and the buildings from the York Avenue

         14  Estate, and the York Avenue Estate appealed the

         15  lower court's ruling and won. So, there is legal

         16  precedent, I think, on their behalf, on the

         17  residents behalf. But I just wanted my colleagues to

         18  know that this has been litigated before, that the

         19  residents who lived in this neighborhood didn't have

         20  the resources to appeal, and because of that have

         21  been penalized.

         22                 And I also wanted to mention, you

         23  talk about building a landmark for the future. We

         24  have a landmark of the present. We have a landmark

         25  of now, which has been recognized twice by the
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          2  Commission. So, why would we bull-doze a landmark

          3  that exists to possible, maybe build a landmark of

          4  the future? We wouldn't tear down the Empire State

          5  Building to maybe allow the developer to build

          6  something better. We wouldn't tear down the Waldorf

          7  Astoria to maybe allow the owner to build something

          8  better. I mean, we're recognizing what's there.

          9                 MR. SELVER: Two points. Number one,

         10  the Court decisions are based on the facts, and I'm

         11  not going to go into detail here because the papers

         12  deal with it. The facts, with respect to the

         13  divisions made by the Board of Estimate when it cut

         14  buildings out of the York Avenue Estate, and it

         15  severed the two buildings at the end of the block on

         16  the First Avenue Estates are very, very different,

         17  and they reflect in the history -- they're reflected

         18  in the history of the two projects, they're

         19  reflected in the architecture, they're reflected in

         20  the planning, and you can see that. We talked about

         21  it in here.  You may disagree with it, but we feel

         22  they are very different, and this decision with

         23  respect to the York Avenue Estate, which is based on

         24  the record with respect to that Estate, is

         25  different, and not dispositive in our case.
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          2                 Secondly, you know, the City did tear

          3  down the Waldorf Astoria once, and if you read about

          4  what people say about the Waldorf Astoria, the first

          5  Waldorf Astoria, it would never have been torn down

          6  if there were a Landmarks Commission then. So, you

          7  can't say we shouldn't tear it down because it's a

          8  landmark today. There are many, many wonderful

          9  buildings in the City of New York, some of which

         10  would have been landmarks, if there had been a

         11  Commission, that have been torn down and replaced by

         12  Landmarks.

         13                 So, I submit that when you're dealing

         14  with something that I think we believe, honestly, is

         15  a marginal landmark, or not a landmark at all, in

         16  fact, is you should not rush to designate it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well, we're not

         18  rushing. It's been 16 years since it happened the

         19  first time. So, you know, I just wanted to end this

         20  dialogue by saying, I mean you ask us to reinforce

         21  the importance of maintaining a high standard, and I

         22  would be very proud of this Subcommittee and of this

         23  Council if we affirm this designation for exactly

         24  that reason, for maintaining high standards. The

         25  Landmarks Commission shouldn't have to vote to
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          2  designate things twice, in my opinion.

          3                 Do any of my colleagues have a

          4  question? Council Member Oddo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

          6                 Mr. Selver, I'm not terribly familiar

          7  with the history of this project and this issue, so

          8  bear with some very basic questions.

          9                 The proposal that you laid out for

         10  the Committee, I assume that there has been a level

         11  of dialogue over all these years between you and the

         12  client and the community? And if you could just sort

         13  of --

         14                 MR. SELVER: I can't say that there

         15  has been. We informally raised this possibility when

         16  it became clear that designation was going to be

         17  calendared, that the building was going to be

         18  calendared for designation, as an alternative, and

         19  we believe that it's a legitimate alternative in the

         20  context of what it is. But we haven't had, there

         21  hasn't been a discussion on it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Can you describe

         23  what raised it informally means exactly?

         24                 MR. SELVER: We discussed it. We

         25  discussed it informally.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: In your

          3  organization or informally with --

          4                 MR. SELVER: No. We had a number of

          5  off-the-record conversations with people outside --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: With the

          7  residents?

          8                 MR. SELVER: Not with residents of the

          9  building.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, are these

         11  folks hearing about this wonderful offer for the

         12  first time today as they sit in the audience?

         13                 MR. SELVER: I think in specifics,

         14  yes. Although it's certainly been mentioned in the

         15  press.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Could you

         17  understand if they were skeptical about hearing it

         18  for the first time now, as we sit in this Committee

         19  hearing? Could you understand their skepticism? I

         20  know if I were a resident and --

         21                 MR. SELVER: I could understand why

         22  somebody hearing it for the first time today would

         23  be skeptical. It's not the first time it's been

         24  surfaced, and it is, you know, it was a somewhat,

         25  particularly the building -- you've heard people
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          2  refer to a 28-story building, the concept was a

          3  building of around that height and there was some

          4  plans and some renderings done to illustrate what it

          5  might mean.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just think

          7  that if there ever were hope of compromising that

          8  you would aggressively seek out the residents and

          9  work with them. And to come to a hearing at the last

         10  minute and sort of raise this, and not partner with

         11  them, I don't know how you -- even from a sheer

         12  political point of view, knowing that these are

         13  constituents, I'm not sure how you think that this

         14  offer would garner any support in the Council

         15  without having first --

         16                 MR. SELVER: I was told that it wasn't

         17  going to garner any support in the community.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: At all?

         19                 MR. SELVER: So we didn't take it any

         20  further.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay, fair

         22  enough.

         23                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         25  Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What's the

          3  average rent of the apartment?

          4                 MR. SELVER: A little bit off the top

          5  of my head it's between 1,000 and 1,300. It's in

          6  that range a month.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And how many

          8  civil service workers are in there now?

          9                 MR. SELVER: I have no idea. I could

         10  find out.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It's a little

         12  late for that at this particular point.

         13                 What's the average apartment size? I

         14  couldn't find it.

         15                 MR. SELVER: They're small. I don't

         16  have the number off the top of my head.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Eight-hundred

         18  square feet, thousand square feet?

         19                 MR. SELVER: Pardon me?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Eight-hundred

         21  square feet? A thousand square feet?

         22                 MR. SELVER: No. It's probably more in

         23  the range of 500 or 600, in that range. Because they

         24  weren't designed to be large apartments. They were

         25  designed to be affordable. And part of what made
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          2  them affordable is they tended to be smaller.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          4                 Okay, thank you. Thank you, Madam

          5  Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          7                 MR. SELVER: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: There is nobody

          9  else signed up to testify. If there is somebody else

         10  here who would like to testify? You already

         11  testified, sir.

         12                 Could you come sit, please, and fill

         13  out a slip with the Sergeant-At-Arms? But if she

         14  could do it again, that would be appreciated. And if

         15  there are those here who did not testify and do not

         16  want to testify but would like to fill out a slip to

         17  indicate if you are in favor or in opposition, that

         18  will be reflected in the record. So, I would

         19  encourage you to do that.

         20                 Please introduce yourself and

         21  proceed.

         22                 MS. McKINZIE: My name is Melanie

         23  McKinzie. I live at the First Avenue Estates. As far

         24  as I understand, a landmark now has to be a whole

         25  landmark, and a piece of it can't be taken off. I
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          2  think that if this section was removed from the

          3  landmarking, I mean it's already been landmarked,

          4  but it would affect the entire rest of the block. I

          5  don't understand the statement that the other

          6  portion of the block would be allowed to have 200

          7  apartments when they've already been landmarked. It

          8  seems like a plan has been put into effect without

          9  the knowledge of us that are actually living in the

         10  building. And I also wanted to say that, I've

         11  watched the Mayor numerous times saying that he's in

         12  support of middle class and lower-income housing,

         13  and that he is in support of this landmarking. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         16  much. Seeing no one else here to testify, this

         17  hearing is closed.

         18                 And I would like to ask the Counsel

         19  to call the roll.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Lappin.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I am going to

         22  recommend a favorable vote on both of these items.

         23  I've already obviously spoken passionately about

         24  City and Suburban, but I really do believe that this

         25  is something that is merited, that the designation
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          2  report reflects exactly why, and that I hope this

          3  Council will vote to uphold what is the second time

          4  this has been designated, and I vote aye.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Mendez.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Permission to

          8  explain my vote?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So ordered.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I vote aye in

         11  these matters, but also want to state that I think

         12  today we take a step to righting a wrong that was

         13  made so many years ago. I'm chairing a meeting

         14  across the way, but from the testimony I heard, I

         15  just want to say that it's important to preserve

         16  historic buildings, tenements are worthy and they're

         17  no obsolete, and in my district they're now becoming

         18  luxury walk-ups. That's what they're referring to

         19  the tenements in my district now. And I proudly vote

         20  aye on this matter.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council member

         22  Martinez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I vote aye

         24  on both items, based on the recommendations of our

         25  Chair.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on both.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Arroyo.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Yes.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

         12  six in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         13  abstentions, the items pass to the full Land Use

         14  Committee.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We'll leave the

         16  vote open for five minutes, and this meeting is

         17  adjourned.

         18                 (The following written testimony was

         19  read into the record.)

         20

         21

         22  Written Testimony Of:

         23  Lisa Kersavage

         24  Kress/RFR Fellow for Historic Preservation

         25  Municipal Art Society
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          2

          3                 The Municipal Art Society is a

          4  private, non-profit membership organization whose

          5  mission is to promote a more livable city. Since

          6  1893, the Society has worked to advocate excellence

          7  in urban design and planning, contemporary

          8  architecture, historic preservation and public art.

          9                 I am Lisa Kersavage, speaking on

         10  behalf of the Municipal Art Society. The MAS

         11  strongly supports the amendment of the boundaries of

         12  the City and Suburban First Avenue Estate to include

         13  the 429 East 64th Street and 430 East 65th Street,

         14  which were removed from the original boundaries by

         15  the now-defunct Board of Estimates.

         16                 These buildings were found by the

         17  commission to be eligible for designation in 1990

         18  and we believe they remain just as important today.

         19  While the significance of the buildings is derived

         20  in part by its architecture, we believe there (sic)

         21  primary importance derives from their historical and

         22  cultural associations. When the First Avenue Estate

         23  was built, between 1898 and 1915, it was one of the

         24  largest low-income housing projects in the world.

         25  The developer, the City and Suburban Homes Company,
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          2  practiced what was then considered "benign

          3  capitalism," in which they built privately-financed

          4  housing for a limited return. The company was

          5  dedicated to supplying the working poor with

          6  "improved, wholesome homes," that had considerably

          7  more light and ventilation than the typical

          8  tenements of their day. That translates

          9  architecturally into buildings with generous light

         10  courts, an abundance of windows, and a relatively

         11  low height. It is these features that are the most

         12  architecturally significant.

         13                 Some neighbors have reported that the

         14  property owner has started work under an alteration

         15  permit received prior to the LPC calendaring the

         16  building for designation. This is clearly an

         17  unscrupulous move undertaken to avoid designation.

         18  That being said, we have looked at the details of

         19  the permit and do not believe the work irreparably

         20  harms the features for which the significance of the

         21  building is derived. Instead, the permit allows for

         22  work, that if completed, makes these attractive

         23  buildings less so, but does not impact the

         24  architectural features that are most significant.

         25                 I wish we had an answer for how to
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          2  address the problem of owners pulling permits for

          3  inappropriate work in order to avoid designation, a

          4  situation that seems to be growing rampant. It most

          5  certainly warrants study. Until we come up with a

          6  solution, we urge you to make the difficult decision

          7  to designate, even with the permit.

          8                 The City Council has the opportunity

          9  to right a politically-motivated wrong and make this

         10  landmark whole again, and we urge you to do so.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 12:52 p.m.)
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